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OUR
PRESIDENT'S
MESSAGE
Melissa Previtera
I would like to thank the current
committee members who have
served QYS over the past year and
all staff who gave their time to
attend committee meetings to
assist us in better understanding
each respective program.
This year we farewelled Greg
Beavis from our management
committee, who commenced as a
member in 2014 and became
treasurer in 2015. Over the years, he
brought in small grants through his
Rotary connections for our ID
Project, First Aid Training and
uniforms for the LearnIT Program.
Through Greg's affiliation with
Rotary, QYS also received four staff
Pride of Workmanship awards in
2020. I feel very privileged to have
had the opportunity to work with
such a pillar in Townsville's
community, and thank Greg for his
exceptional compassion, wisdom
and
commitment
to
our
organisation.
We also reflect on the diligent
work of our over 50 volunteers
whose value to the development
and delivery of our services cannot
be
overstated.
Equally,
we
acknowledge the 'volunteerism' of
our 21 staff members, many of
whom could serve their own
purposes financially by working in
the for-profit industry, but instead
commit their professional skills,
intellect and energy to serve those
most in need. Take heart knowing
your contributions are making an
immeasurable impact in the lives
of many young people.
I wish to thank the following
businesses, community

organisations and individuals, as
well
as
others,
who
made
donations to QYS to improve
outcomes for our region's most
vulnerable youth.
Townsville City Council
Evolution Mining Mt Carlton
Townville Northern Suburbs Lions Club
Rotary Thuringowa
Community Gambling Benefit Fund
Foundation for Rural Regional Renewal
(FRRR)
Stockland
Stronger Communities
Pickerings Auto Group, Tropic Petroleum,
GMMedia and other Contributors to our
LearnIT Fuel Card Campaign
Parents & Supporters of LearnIT

We are acutely aware that our
work is only made possibly by the
generosity of our supporters,
partners
and
funders.
Your
investments into the continuation
and development of our services
are investments into the lives of our
most
vulnerable
youth
in
Townsville and Mt Isa. It's because
of you that we helped 553 young
people take vital steps in their
journey towards independence
and opportunity.
Over the past financial year, we
have
stayed
active
in
our
community, leaving us with the
following highlights.
QYS
elected
for
the
Queensland
Community Group Achievement Awards
2020
Establishment of a partnership with
YWAM to provide short-term housing for
at-risk youth
Approval for QYS to use funding to headlease properties and provide more shortterm housing for at-risk youth in
partnership with Sharehouse Youth
Programs Inc.
Townsville Vulnerable Youth Working
Group created and spearheaded by QYS
YHARS Coordinator, Chris Martin.

LearnIT Fuel Card Campaign organised by
Pickerings Auto Group, Tropic Petroleum
and GMMedia that raised $5,000 for fuel
Pickerings Auto Group donation of a car
to LearnIT
21 police recruits volunteered as driving
mentors for LearnIT in conjunction with
Queensland Police Service Community
Engagement Initiative in 2021
159 students given vouchers for school
supplies with FRRR Back to School
Program delivered by QYS YHARS Mt Isa
in early 2021
Chameleon Upcycled Products, QYS
social enterprise, and workshop for young
people is in the process of being
revitalised via donations, however this
requires more funding.

QYS will continue to oversee
funded programs with the hope to
expand in other areas within the
youth sector with new and
innovative programs, subject to
successful financial grants. QYS will
continue
to
grow
through
feedback from clients, colleagues
and
key
stakeholders.
With
continued
support
from
our
funding bodies, our gifted and
dedicated staff and volunteers,
including
our
management
committee, QYS will continue to
provide the support necessary to
empower
our
most
valued
resource: our young people.
As we embark on a new year, we
embrace the challenges and
opportunities before us. With each
young person we support on their
journey to independence, we are
one step closer to our goal of
empowering youth and providing
opportunities for young people to
achieve a safe and sustainable
lifestyle. We do so humbly and
confidently, with a clear strategic
plan in place, a skilled and
passionate team and a family of
loyal and generous supporters.
We hope you enjoy our
annual report.
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At the beginning of this financial
year, we started with reviewing the
QYS Strategic Plan and our Mission
of Empowering Youth, which
remains at the core of everything
we do. If successful in our mission
then youth will believe in their own
power to transform. We reviewed
our organisational values and came
to a consensus on five: respect,
professionalism, dedication, dignity
and evolving. These values guide
our code of conduct and the way
we carry out our business.
In moving forward towards 2023,
our desired future is to operate out
of a QYS owned building, to have
financial sustainability, achieve
growth through partnerships and
innovative practices and achieve a
higher profile in our community. In
2021, we started on the journey to
achieve these goals.
Our management committee
endorsed the formation of a subcommittee to assist with the
operations and strategic direction
of our LearnIT Program. The subcommittee consists of members
from our business committee who
have been strong supporters of
LearnIT. Their first action was to
produce a report to review the
program's achievements in its first
three years of operation. They also
coordinated a fundraising initiative
to keep the program's cars on the
road via a Fuel Card Campaign. The
campaign raised $5,000 worth of
donations from 22 local business
and spread awareness about
LearnIT and it's objectives.
A high level of community
engagement was also achieved
through the 50 volunteer driving
mentors that have given 6721 hours
to supporting our youth, each one
spreading the word about QYS.

OUR
CEO'S
MESSAGE

Wendy Lang

The formation of the Townsville
Vulnerable
Youth
Network
Meeting, led by our YHARS
Coordinator, has seen over 15
community organisations attend
meetings and work collaboratively
to find solutions to the issues
impacting the vulnerable youth in
our community. One such issue
was that of the housing shortage
for young parents, young people
with mental health issues, those
under 18 years of age who are
homeless and young people on
temporary visas. The connections
made within this working group
led to a partnership between QYS
and Youth With A Mission (YWAM),
where both of our organisations
now work together to provide a
community
living
space
for
vulnerable youth.
Our persistence in requesting to
utilise unspent YHARS brokerage
funding to house youth was given
more leverage once supported by a
collective
group
of
agencies
working in the field. The relevant
funding
body
endorsed
our
proposal to head lease a set of
properties to house YHARS clients
experiencing homelessness. We
now have the next 12 months to
demonstrate that our shared
housing model is effective in
reducing youth homelessness. This
model also includes a partnership
with Sharehouse Youth Programs
Inc. who will be acting as property
managers.
The QYS Mt Isa team has
established monthly meetings with
the Department of Housing and
the Mount Isa Community

Development Association (MICDA),
the property managers of our
YHARS Transition to Independent
Living (TIL) units. The consistent
communications and sharing of
cases has led to an increase of
social housing being offered to our
clients.
The two longest running QYS
programs are the Young Parents
Program (YPP)
and Reconnect.
YPP continues to be resourceful in
attracting community donations
for young families, and the
Reconnect team has developed
respectful relationships with the
Department of Child Safety and
local schools.
I commend all staff on
contributing to the professional
reputation of our organisation and
building up of our community
profile. I also acknowledge our
committee
members
Melissa
Previtera, Greg Beavis, Krissy
Regan, Dr. Mark David Chong, Pat
Driscoll, Joe Mikaele Ah-Kuoi, Tom
Evans, Tammie Harrison and Teresa
Hope, whose guidance and support
is always appreciated. I give special
thanks to our treasurer, Greg
Beavis, who resigned from the
committee on June 21, 2021 . Greg
was on our committee for 7 years
and held the position of treasurer
for 6 years. On behalf of all of us,
thank you Greg.
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OUR
TREASURER'S
MESSAGE
Written on behalf of Greg Beavis
I present this report in
conjunction
with
this
year's
audited
Annual
Financial
Statements. QYS continued to
operate the same programs as the
prior financial year. We received
good
news
with
two-year
extensions for the Reconnect and
Young Parents Programs.
Our annual income for the End
of
the
Financial
Year
was
$2,365,982. Our current service
agreements are:
Department of Transport and Main Roads:
LearnIT Program (Townsville), funded to
December 31 2021
Department of Child Safety, Youth Justice
and Multicultural Affairs: Youth Housing &
Reintegration
Service
(YHARS)
(Townsville), funded to June 30 2023
Department of Child Safety, Youth Justice
and Multicultural Affairs: Youth Housing &
Reintegration Service (YHARS) (Mt Isa),
funded to June 30 2023
Department of Social Services: Young
Parents Program (Townsville), funded to
June 30 2023
Department of Social Services: Reconnect
Program (Townsville), funded to June 30
2023
National Indigenous Australian Agency:
Munchkins
Playgroup
(Townsville),
funded to June 30 2023

QYS received a total $61,904 in
grants from the following:
The Community Gambling Benefit Fund
Evolution Mining Mt Carlton
Foundation for Rural Regional Renewal
Stronger Communities
Stockland CARE Grant

We also received $15,302 in
donations from various businesses,
initiatives
and
community
members such as:
LearnIT Fuel Card Campaign
Rotary Port of Townsville
Northern Suburbs Lions Club
Townsville City Council
Minister Coralie O'Rourke
Farron Nash

Daniel Johnson
Stephen Merrik
Other community members

In-kind support also has a
significant financial impact on an
organisation, so I'd like to recognise
the following parties for their
contributions to QYS:
Our LearnIT mentors and volunteers
Pickerings Auto Group
GM Media
Graduate School of Motoring
Bob Jane T-Mart
Hudson Welding

A significant change in the
community service sector has been
the introduction of the Portable
Long
Service
Leave
Scheme
managed by QLeave. From January
2021, employees will have their
time spent in the industry
recognised,
providing
more
security and certainty for workers.
At an organisational level, the
employer pays a levy to QLeave
every quarter. Whilst expenses for
LSL are more predictable, removing
the probability of calculating
likelihood of staff retention, the
change also means reduced funds
retain in the QYS cash reserves.
As
of
July
2021,
the
Superannuation Guarantee has
been increased from 9.5% to 10%.
The impact annually to QYS will be
an increase of $7.1k to QYS payroll
costs. This is additional to the
annual
award
increases
and
incremental progression of staff.
Increases in payroll costs can
impact
program
funding
significantly and requires some
adjustments to budgets each year.
Declining interest earnings from
Term Deposits and Bonus Saver

accounts prompted an assessment
of how best to yield from the QYS
Reserve Funds. Interest Income for
this year was $4,500, compared to
an average of $15,400 for each of
the prior three years. At the end of
June
2021,
QYS
purchased
Preference Shares with Investors
Central for a term of two years. This
ensures earnings at an interest rate
of 4.5%, which will produce $13,500
annually.
Efficiency gains have been
achieved in reducing Leave Liability
balances and property expenses.
Due to the age of our computer
hardware, the occurrence of IT
support charges was regular. The
Community
Gambling
Fund
enabled us to replace half of our
computers and upgrade our
software, which should decrease IT
related expenses in future.
The vehicle fleet's usage was
reviewed and as a result, our ute
was sold and an older car was
replaced, with it's replacement
wrapped with QYS branding. Our
bus has received refurbishment to
its panels and air conditioning,
extending its useful life.
I would like to commend Chris
Hains, our Finance and Commercial
Officer, for his due diligence in
maintaining financial records and
for the monthly reports provided to
the management committee. I also
acknowledge Wendy Lang, CEO,
and fellow committee members
for their leadership, management
and accountability. Following 7
years on the committee and 6
years as treasurer, I have decided to
resign.
I
wish
this
great
organisation all the best and can
say that I was proud to be a part of
the work you all do.
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ABOUT US
Queensland Youth Services Inc. (QYS) is a
not-for-profit, non-government organisation
that provides youth support services in
Townsville and Mt Isa.
QYS is an HDAA certified organisation that is
officially registered with the Australian
Charities and Not-for-Profts Commision
(ACNC).

Service Delivery Goals

1

MAINTAIN FAMILY
STRUCTURES

2

CREATE SUSTAINABLE
LIFESTYLES

3

EMPOWERMENT THROUGH
STRENGTH-BASED
STRATEGIES

Providing a holistic service to

help youth be the
best they can be.

OUR MISSION
EMPOWERING YOUTH

QYS builds the
capacity of young people to achieve a better
quality of life and wellbeing. We give them the
skills to take control of their lives.

OUR VISION
YOUTH BELIEVE IN THEIR POWER
All youth can rise
TO TRANSFORM

above their circumstances by developing selfrespect, dignity and independence, and in doing
so, can carve a new future for themselves.

OUR STORY
Queensland Youth Services started
out in 1978 as a drop-in centre called
the Open Youth Project (OYP). For 15
years, the OYP centre offered self-help,
employment and skills development
services for disadvantaged youth.
In 1993, the OYP management
become
to
voted
committee
name
the
under
incorporated
Queensland Youth Services Inc., with a
goal of expanding beyond Townsville.
For a period of time this was achieved,
as youth support services were offered
in Ayr, Ingham and Charters Towers.
In 2010, QYS launched the Youth
Housing and Reintegration Services
(YHARS) program in Townsville, then
later extended this service to a new
QYS branch in Mt Isa. This program
remains our largest service.
the
facilitates
QYS
Currently,
Reconnect Program, Young Parents
Program, LearnIT Program and YHARS
Program. Each of which allows us to
provide our region's youth with
opportunities to empower themselves
and believe in their ability to
transform their lives for the better.
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OUR PEOPLE
Melissa Previtera
President

President

March 2020 Present

Secretary
September
2016 February
2020

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Greg Beavis
Treasurer

Treasurer

September
2016 - June
2021

A
member
since
2014,
Greg brought

Melissa holds her Bachelor's in
Psychology and Social Science, as well
as 19 plus years experience in the social
services sector. She was a QYS Program
Team Leader from 2005-2013, and is
now Program Manager at Mission
Australia. Her background gives QYS
great insight and guidance in youth
related matters.

with him a wealth of experience
following his many years of service with
Federal
and
Local
Government
departments. Throughout his life, he
has also volunteered for other not-forprofit organisations and schools. We
thank him for his contributions while he
was a member of our committee.

Pat Driscoll

Tom Evans

Committee Member
Member

Committee Member
Member

December
2020 Present

Pat is
the
Managing
Director of

With
an
extensive
career in the

Software Solutions Pty Ltd and
Chairperson of DriveIT, where he has
been instrumental in securing funding
needed for the Townsville motor sport
precinct. Pat holds a Bachelor's of
Engineering
and
is
currently
completing his Master's in Urban
Planning and Design.

finance industry, Tom found his way
into community services and started
working for QYS in 2004 as Finance &
Commercial Officer. He stayed in this
role for 16 years, and in July 2020,
retired. Tom holds a diploma of
Management
and
certificate
in
Workplace Health & Safety.

Dr. Mark David Chong

Joe Mikaele Ah-Kuoi

Member

September
2020 Present

Currently
a
senior lecturer
in criminology
and criminal justice studies, Dr. Chong
has held many esteemed positions
within James Cook University's faculty.
He holds the following qualifications:
PhD (Law) (Syd), LLM (Merit) (Lond), LLB
(Hons) (Lond), English Barrister-at-Law
(Lincoln’s Inn), Advocate & Solicitor of
the Supreme Court of Singapore.

Secretary

Secretary

March 2020 Present

Member
October
2019 February
2020

Krissy is an author and the founder of
Mindful Mums QLD. She delivers
training programs that focus on
developing leadership skills, client and
staff management and wellbeing. She
also has her Bachelor's in Exercise
Science & Sports Management and a
diploma in Procurement & Supply
Chain Management.

Tammie Harrison

November
2019 Present

Committee Member

Krissy Regan

Committee Member

Member

September
2020 Present

Joe
is
the
director
of
Strive Lane, a
self-development
and
mentoring
program for young people. He has
diverse experience working with youth,
stemming
from
his
professional
background
in
education
and
leadership. Joe holds his Bachelor's in
English & Sociology and a Graduate
Diploma in Learning & Teaching.

Committee Member

Member

November
2020 Present

Tammie has an
extensive
background in
the youth sector, including working
with QYS for 9 years, and is now a
Senior
Project
Officer
for
the
Department of Aboriginal & Torres Strait
Islander Partnerships. She holds her
Bachelor's in Community Management,
Social Work and Community Work,
Certificate of Youth Work Practice and
Cert IV in Indigenous Leadership.

Teresa Hope

Committee Member
Member
November
2020 Present

Teresa's strong
background in
Finance &
Strategic Planning stems from her
experience in executive roles in the
Publishing, Media and Events industries.
Now she is a self-employed consultant,
with growing experience in community
fundraising and support. Teresa
holds a diploma in Banking &
Finance, and partial degrees in
Business, Accounting and
6
Education.

STAFF

Wendy Lang

Chris Hains

Dana Saulter

Ruth Martin

Billatena Schmidt

CEO

Finance & Commercial
Officer

Office Administrator

Young Parents Program
Coordinator

Young Parents Program
Assistant

Sue Taylor

Zoe De Satge

Reconnect Program
Team Leader

Early Intervention Worker

Early Intervention Worker

Cassy Hinds

Dalen Steenhuis

James O'Hagan

YHARS Program
Administrator

YHARS Program Worker

YHARS Program Worker

Brad Cross

Corrie Segboer

Murray Holm

Deanna Widdison

YHARS Program Worker

YHARS Program Worker
(Student)

Road Safety
Program Coordinator
(LearnIT)

Road Safety
Program Assistant
(LearnIT)

Esperance Segal
YHARS Program Worker

Toby Marhin

Tracy Swanbrough

Chris Martin

Early Intervention Worker

YHARS
Coordinator

Jodie Cronk
YHARS Program Worker

Jaymi Quincey
YHARS Program Worker

Priscilla Lane

Esther Nwagbara

Sally Melville

Georgina Saltmere

YHARS Team Leader
(Mt Isa)

YHARS Program Worker
(Mt Isa)

YHARS Program Worker
(Mt Isa)

YHARS Program Worker
(Mt Isa)
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UNDERSTANDING OUR YOUTH
Our organisation assists vulnerable youth from various backgrounds, cultures
and walks of life by helping them overcome the complex issues and
experiences they face.

Our Youth Groups
The primary youth groups that QYS interacts with are:

Homeless or
At-Risk of
Homelessness

Young
Parents

Unemployed
Youth

Young
Care-Givers

Youth
Detention or
Child Safety

Issues & Experiences
Each young person could be experiencing issues with multiple of the following factors which results in them needing help.

Cultural
Identity

Affordable
Housing

Domestic
Violence

Drugs &
Alcohol

Youth
Mentorship

Life & Social
Skills

Poor
Family
Relationships

Mental
Health

Financial
Independence

Education &
Training

Cyberbullying

Driver's
Licence &
Transportation

8

553
444

Young People Aged 12-24
Have Been Supported by QYS
Young People Received
Case Management
Youth receiving case management develop
case plans which outline a set of goals that
will help them achieve independence and
stability. Program workers empower each
young person to fulfil these goals and support
them using QYS' resources and networks.

Young People Who
Reported Homelessness
When a young person's living situation
becomes unsafe, they are forced to couch surf
or find other unstable living conditions,
thereby putting them at immediate risk of
homelessness. QYS assists these young people
in finding safe and suitable accommodation
to reduce this risk.

165

Young People Involved
with Child Safety At
Some Point in Their Life
QYS provides assistance to young people who
are transitioning out of the care of Child
Safety, as well as helping young parents who
require supervised access visits.

Young People Identified
as Aboriginal and/or
Torres Strait Islander
QYS is committed to the pursuit of social
justice and empowerment of young people.
This includes our First Nation's people, who we
work closely with towards closing the gap.

126

262

Young People
Who Have
Children
Supported by
playgroups, parent
groups and other
services.

Internal
Referrals
Using the support
systems within QYS,
internal referrals
allow clients to use
all of our programs.

274
50
9

OUR PROGRAMS
The LearnIT Program helps
young people (aged 16-25)
who don't have access to a
driving supervisor, a vehicle
to practice driving in, or the
financial capacity to get
their
driver's
licence,
achieve their driving goals.

LearnIT strives to change lives and build a better, stronger community by creating safer
drivers through youth mentorship. In the last year, LearnIT has had:

109

59

35

50

5895

Supported by
the Program

P Licences
Obtained

Learner's
Permits Obtained

Volunteer
Driving Mentors

1 Hr Driving
Lessons Conducted

LearnIT In Action: A Case Study

The story of Max, a LearnIT graduate.

Before LearnIT

After Several Lessons

Max knew getting his licence would open up many doors for him
but he struggled with anxiety, especially whenever he stepped
outside of his comfort zone.

Max's confidence grew with every lesson he took. He came out of
his shell, asked more questions, began interacting with people in
his life more and even asked his mother if he could drive
(something which never used to happen).

He attempted some paid driving lessons, however
the approach by the instructors made his anxiety
worse and didn't make him feel safe on the road.
His single mother was already struggling with
balancing work and life responsibilities, which
made providing her son with safe, supervised
driving guidance difficult.

After the First Lesson
LearnIT came highly recommended by a friend of Max's mother,
and once accepted, it changed Max's life.
After his first driving lesson, Max came home with a
smile on his face. He was calm and eager to show
his mother what he had learned, and also started
bringing to her attention all the things she had
been doing wrong as a driver.
As a parent, this brought tears to Max's mother's
eyes because, although it may not seem like
much, this was a major breakthrough for her son.

The driving mentors were amazing; they
interacted with Max like he was a human being
and actually wanted to see him achieve his goal.
The mentors helped Max settle his anxiety by
sharing their own life experiences, and most
importantly, taught Max how to be a safe driver.

After Obtaining a P Licence
With the help of LearnIT, Max obtained his driver's licence and has
seen many positive changes in his life. He's been interacting with
his friends more outside of home by going fishing and taking drives
to the beach.
At work, he has been promoted from a pushbike
delivery person to a delivery driver which has
boosted his confidence greatly and opened him
up to more shifts.
At home, he has been more engaged,
interactive and has a lot more
motivation.

1
10
0

Testimonial
"Enrolling Max into the LearnIT Program was the best decision I ever
made. The changes I have witnessed goes above and beyond a normal
mentoring program. I'd like to say a huge THANK YOU to each and
every one of the employees/mentors that are apart of the LearnIT
Program. Individually, you all have made a positive impact on my son's
life.

Without the hard work and dedication of everyone involved, this
would not have been possible. You all have given me peace of mind
that my son is a safe, confident driver and shown myself and Max
that with the right approach and guidance, anything is possible. You
all have made a difference, not just in my son's life, but my life also."
-Parent of a LearnIT Graduate

LearnIT Initiatives
Don't Be A Loser - A Road Safety
Campaign for Young People

For Queensland Youth Week 2021, QYS hosted Don't Be A Loser - A
Road Safety Campaign for Young People. This free 3-day workshop
focused on giving young people important knowledge about road
safety and providing them with skills needed to build a powerful
campaign of their own to make our region's road's safer.
The event featured guest speakers from the Townsville Forensic Crash
Unit (Road Policing & Regional Support), the Advanced Driver Training
Centre and QYS' own LearnIT Program. Townsville Fire also made
guest appearances and participated in activities such as a ball toss
while wearing intoxication goggles.
This workshop gave young people the chance to think critically about
how to achieve road safety in a way that appeals to their peers, and
was an overall success with attendees as some great campaigns were
formulated.

Fuel Card Campaign

Pickerings Auto Group and Tropic Petroleum came together to
support LearnIT with the inception of a campaign to keep the
program's cars on the road. GM Media was brought on board to bring
the whole initiative to life, and soon things gained traction.
The Fuel Card Campaign meant that donations could be made
towards LearnIT by buying fuel cards directly from any of the Tropic
Petroleum Caltex Service Station in Townsville. These fuel cards would
then be given straight to LearnIT so that they could be used to fuel
cards. To top it off, Tropic matched each donation dollar for dollar.
Jarent Grant, Principal Dealer at Pickerings and member of the
LearnIT sub-committee, and Glenn from GM Media went around the
community spreading the word about this great initiative and what
LearnIT does. Eventually a whopping $5,000 in donations was raised
from 22 local businesses and individuals. Amazing!
This year, 35
recruits from the
Queensland Police
Service Academy
volunteered
as driving mentors
for LearnIT, a
partnership which
has existed since
LearnIT's inception
in 2018.

100 Graduates Milestone
In April 2021, LearnIT officially had 100 graduates. This means that
since the program's inception in 2018, LearnIT has been able to help
over 100 young people gain their P licences, thereby opening up so
many doors for them.

A thank you message to
our volunteers.

6721
Volunteer Hours
Completed by
All LearnIT
Volunteers

Our volunteers are what
make LearnIT so special.
Each
person
who
chooses to volunteer
their time to become a
driving
mentor
is
making
a
huge
difference in the lives of
our young people and
their families. Whether
its one hour a week, or

five hours, their contribution is priceless. We
thank each and every person who has chosen
to become a volunteer for LearnIT, past,
present and future, and look forward to all the
great outcomes we can achieve for our
community together.

Each individual below has contributed 150 or more volunteer hours.

Joan

Stephen

Greg

Ken

Vernon

Ken

Alf

Alan

Claude

Mark

111
0 11

The Reconnect Program
assists young people (aged
12-18) who are having
trouble at home, finding it
difficult to engage in school,
training or employment,
and
are
feeling
disconnected from their
community.

94
Young People
Received
Case Management

43%

57%

Male

Female

31%

79%

Aged
10-14

Aged
15-19

This year, Reconnect's goal was to
provide increased information and
support to as many young people
and families as possible. With this
support, families could create
positive change, improve their
knowledge and wellbeing, and
enhance the quality of their life and
relationships.
Case Plan Outcomes
Of the 92 case plans that were created in the
last year, 257 resulting actions were carried
out. These actions saw each young person's
(client) goals achieved or not achieved as
follows:

44%

Fully Achieved

16%

Most Achieved

19%

Partly Achieved

7%

Slightly Achieved

5%

Not Achieved

4%

Not Applicable

5%

No Outcome Recorded

64

1653

79

Of These Young
People Were At Risk
of Homelessness

Hours of Case Work
Provided to Young
People & Families

Mediation Sessions

2 Homeless at the
Time of Referral

3171 Instances of
Contact

With 22 Young People

Each young person assisted by Reconnect identifies
goals and areas of development that they'd like to
work on when they first start engaging with the
program by creating a case plan. These areas include:
Mental Health, Wellbeing &
Self-Care
Family Functioning
Community Participation
Physical Health
Material Wellbeing

Education & Skills Training
Personal & Family Safety
Housing
Age-Appropriate
Development
Financial Resilience

Reconnect continually assesses progress with each
young person and their case plan, yielding the following
results from the past year.
Of 65 clients assessed

Of 63 clients assessed

83%

83%

had positive
outcomes for
overall
circumstances

had positive
outcomes for goal
achievement

Of 50 clients assessed

90%
were satisfied with
the service they
received

*Assessments based on data collected from 68 eligible clients.
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Case Study
Reconnect received a referral from a local secondary school in May
2021 for a 16 year old female student name Kate. Kate disclosed to her
teacher that she was couch surfing, as her relationship with her family
had deteriorated, mainly due to Kate's mental health and associated
behaviours.
Kate has an extensive history with the Child Youth Mental Health
Service (CYMHS) and had been regularly seeing a clinician for
approximately 3 years. She also had several admissions into the
Adolescent Inpatient Unit and Day Service (AUDS). Kate had been
given a diagnosis of PTSD and Borderline Personality Disorder, as well
as anxiety and depression. Kate also self-harms, and these instances
often require hospital treatment. When escalated, Kate has caused
damage to the home by punching walls, doors and smashing items.
Approximately 8 months prior, CYMHS discharged Kate from their
service. Just before the Reconnect referral came through in May 2021,
Kate had been accepted into Twice Blessed Counselling, a private
service, and also by a counsellor at the Women's Centre. Kate had
been on waitlists since her initial discharge from CYMHS. Kate has
since settled with these two services and has had alternating
appointments week to week with them.
Margaret and Don, Kate's parents, are fearful of her when she becomes
escalated. She becomes destructive and has manipulated and
intimidated her intellectually impaired sister into purchasing alcohol
and cigarettes for her. Kate also engages in behaviour that is
conflicting with Margaret and Don's values and faith. This has resulted
in Kate's inability to reside at home, thereby putting her access to a
safe place to live at risk.
Margaret and Don know very little about Kate's diagnosis and feel that
Kate attending sessions with counsellors will 'fix her'. The onus is very
much placed on Kate to just 'get well' and do what the doctors say,
adhere to their values and take their medication.
Due to the complexity of needs with this situation, Reconnect has
assigned two case workers to assist this family: one to work with Kate
and the other to assist Margaret and Don in building their

understanding of Kate's needs and how to best support each other
as a family.
Case workers have discussed Therapeutic Crisis Intervention
strategies with Margaret and Don, such as: managing the
environment, using appropriate tone of voice, using proximity rather
than language when things get escalated and using opportunities
when Kate is back at baseline to unpack what has happened and how
to prevent similar occurrences in future.
Conversations have also been had about triggers for Kate's behaviour.
Reconnect was able to identify the types of situations that caused
Kate to become escalated and identified the signs to look for in
future. Equipped with this new information, Reconnect then
discussed strategies to use to redirect Kate, and put further strategies
in place to manage the environment to decrease the likelihood of reescalation.
The case workers have tried to use concrete examples to teach new
strategies to the family and role play common scenarios to assist
them in seeing what effective strategies look like.
A referral has been accepted by the Act For Kids family therapy team;
Reconnect believes family therapy sessions will be a big help to the
family.
Due to Kate's day to day struggle with her mental health, her case
worker is also assisting her in getting an National Disability Insurance
Scheme (NDIS) referral, to be completed through the Assessment and
Referral Team (ART) Disability and Connect Outreach Program.
An appointment at the sexual health clinic is also being arranged for
Kate. This will allow her to learn more about how she identifies
sexually. Discussions with Margaret about adolescent sexual
development, and how the trauma Kate experienced as a child may
impact her development of sexual identity, will also be scheduled.
Kate's case plan will be reviewed again once an outcome has been
received by Reconnect about NDIS.

Reconnect Initiatives
LOVE BiTES
A Respectful Relationships Program

Queensland Youth Week
Community BBQ

Queensland Youth Week is an annual celebration of young people
aged 12 to 25, so in keeping with this theme, the Reconnect team
planned a fun-day out.
LOVE BiTES is a Respectful Relationships Education Program for
young people. The program aims to provide young people with a safe
environment to examine, discuss and explore respectful relationships
amongst trained facilitators.
All programming takes a strength-based approach and views young
people as active participants who are able to make choices for
themselves and their relationships when supported with information
and opportunities for skill development.
LOVE BiTES education is focused on three critical pillars of learning:
Knowledge: youth-led collaborative learning
Attitudes: critical thinking and decision-making
Behaviours: problem solving and communication skills
The Reconnect team continually partakes in this respectful
relationship program by assisting with LOVE BiTES workshops held
locally. This has allowed team members to build their skills in this area
and develop a rapport with young people, other youth-focused
agencies and the wider community.
Reconnect will be hosting their own LOVE BiTES workshop towards
the end of the year and looks forward to continuing to help young
people develop their relationship skills.

The BBQ quickly became a collaboration event between multiple
community service agencies. The opportunity to meet with the teams
of many of the youth support agencies that help our community gave
our youth a window into the support systems that existed for them.
Representatives from QYS' Reconnect Program and Youth Housing
and Reintegration Service attended, as well as members from
Sharehouse Youth Programs Inc., Townsville Aboriginal and Islanders
Health Services (TAIHS) and Youth With A Mission (YWAM). Young
people supported by these agencies attended, networked and were
able to walk away with a better understanding of who else is out there
to help them find their path towards independence.
Apart from learning about available support systems and networks, all
attendees got to enjoy a wonderful day out. Food was provided,
picnics were had, basketball games were played and overall great
memories were made catching up with friends and colleagues in the
industry.
Approximately

1386

clients (all unidentified/not linked to
an active case) have participated in
youth-targeted workshops and
programs that Reconnect has
participated in.
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The Youth Housing and
Reintegration
Service
(YHARS)
assists
young
people (12-21) who are
homeless, or at-risk of
homelessness,
transition
into
independence
and
greater stability. QYS offers
this
service
in
both
Townsville and Mt Isa, QLD.

Townsville

112

146

45

7621

7

Young People
Received YHARS
Case Management
& Support

Supported Youth
Who Identified As
Homeless

Youth Sustained
Independent Living
for More than 6
Months

Case Management
Hours Provided

Moths Average
Time Youth
Supported

Aftercare

102
Young People
Supported by
Aftercare

YHARS also offers Aftercare, an
additional support service for young
people needing assistance.
Aftercare
services
provides
individualised support to (a) young
people who are receiving case
management
from
external
agencies through the provision of
brokerage funds on a case by case
basis and, (b) those who have or are
leaving the care of Child Safety
Services.

One of Townsville YHARS' main goals this
past year was to increase the availability of
transitional housing pathways for vulnerable
youth, as the program assists young people
who are:
Transitioning
from the Child
Protection
System

90

Exiting Care
(18-20yrs)

Youth Assisted
Who Have Been
Involved with
Child Safety at
Some Point in
their Life

Transitioning
from a Youth
Detention
Centre

23

YHARS Program Workers focus on empowering
youth by:
Helping them to
find safe, suitable
accommodation

Teaching them life
& independent
living skills

Linking them to
other support
services to create a
long-term success
plan

Engaging them
in education,
training and
employment

Testimonial

Living in
Temporary/
Unstable
Housing

"I was referred to the YHARS Program in May 2021 from IONA House.
At the time, I was couch surfing at my family's home due to
overcrowding before staying at IONA House. I had limited
accommodation options and was looking for support with becoming
more independent.

Youth Assisted
Who Have Been
Involved with
Youth Justice at
Some Point in
their Life

I have been working with my caseworker Jodie on achieving my goals.
Some of my goals were to complete my RSA certification, obtain
employment at the Cowboy's Leagues Club and participate in driving
lessons. My caseworker Jodie has assisted with fixing my CentreLink
payments, transport to appointments, provided me with the
opportunity to meet guest speaker Cameron Callope, supported me
with completing my Census form and helped me sign up with YWAM
House which has given me stable and independent accommodation.
YWAM House has encouraged me to participate in the PAC Team
(Cultural Dancing) and Worship Night, which involves singing and
dining with the YWAM community.

The Vulnerable Youth Network Meetings, established by YHARS
Coordinator, Chris Martin, in August 2020, address these types of gaps
in Townsville's service delivery. These meetings have brought together
over 15 youth support organisations to put forth solutions and ideas to
help our region's at-risk youth.

I love working with YHARS and appreciate everything
they have helped me with."
-YHARS Client
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Case Study
This case study outlines the steps taken between Youth With A
Mission (YWAM) and QYS' YHARS program to engage in an agreement
to provide transitional housing for clients referred by the YHARS
program.
In August 2020, QYS YHARS Coordinator, Chris Martin, started the
Vulnerable Youth Network Meeting in Townsville. The network's
initial meeting was attended by various non-government and
government agencies from the area who work with vulnerable youth.
They met and identified gaps in service delivery they experience. One
of these common gaps was the lack of accommodation options for
vulnerable youth in Townsville. A second gap was the limited
availability of transition pathways out of the current youth shelters
in Townsville, namely IONA House and TAIHS Youth Shelter.
The Vulnerable Youth Network continued to meet on a monthly basis
to create solutions to these gaps in service delivery. Local Level
Alliance Facilitator, Tiffany Stubbin, regularly attended these meetings
and, in March 2021, had an opportunity to meet with staff from YWAM
to discuss the use of their student accommodation for people at risk
of homelessness. Tiffany mentioned to the YWAM staff that QYS had
identified a gap in housing for vulnerable youth in Townsville and
wondered if they were interested in meeting with QYS CEO, Wendy
Lang, and Chris Martin. A meeting was then organised between Robyn
Mulligan, YWAM Operations Manager, Bethany Cole, YWAM
Accommodations Supervisor, Adaira Meier, YWAM Medical & Training
Ship, Tiffany, Wendy and Chris.
The lack of accommodation for vulnerable youth in Townsville was
discussed at this initial meeting, as well as the need for transitional
housing to free up space in shelters to create more crisis
accommodation. The YWAM staff showed Tiffany, Chris and Wendy
around their Youth Precinct and discussed the potential uses of the
facilities. The accommodation consisted of single rooms with shared
bathroom and kitchen facilities.

YHARS Initiatives
Paluma Range
Camping Trip
In August 2020, the YHARS team
and some clients set out on an
overnight journey that took them to
the DCK Shelter in the Paluma
Range. The trip was done in
conjunction with Outer Limits
Adventure Fitness, who are familiar
with the area and could assist the
clients and staff in preparing for the
trek.
The journey involved a grueling
20km hike through the range to a
self-contained shelter where clients
and staff settled for the night.
Everyone carried all their own
supplies with them throughout the
whole journey, prepared their own
meals, and camped out under the stars in quite cold conditions.
The purpose of the camp was to teach the young people who came
along about resilience and determination, to help them use these
transferrable skills moving forward in their transition towards
independence. In the end all clients made it with guidance and help
from the YHARS team. An unforgettable trek.

Life Skills Training

From this initial meeting, subsequent meetings were held between
QYS and YWAM, where both teams worked to develop a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). During the MOU
development stage, YWAM did note that for safety purposes, they
wanted the accommodation to be for females only, with the facilities
to be shared by female YWAM students/employees and females
YHARS clients. Once finalised, the MOU was signed off by both party's
executive management and the two teams were officially ready to
start preparing the campus for clients.
The next step in the process was for YWAM to develop a tenant
application form, induction booklet, CentreLink pay ID number and
residential tenancy agreement. Once YWAM had all these documents
in place, QYS then arranged for four rooms at the YWAM Youth
Precinct to be fitted out with a bed frame, mattress, mattress
protector, linen, television, tallboy, containers for food, bar fridge,
shower caddie, laundry hamper, pedestal fan and hanging rack for
clothing. Once the rooms were ready, YWAM advised QYS YHARS that
they could accept referrals for the accommodation.
The YHARS team had already anticipated the accommodation being
ready and pre-qualified two female clients to put forward for the
Precinct. One of the clients was staying at the TAIHS Youth Shelter
and the other was in an overcrowded family home with unsuitable
conditions. YHARS Program Workers submitted the referral to YWAM
and soon, they were both accepted. A meeting was then arranged
between the two clients and YWAM for the young people to view the
accommodation and sign the relevant paperwork. The process went
well and the two clients moved into the accommodation a few days
later with the support of their YHARS Program Workers. A third female
YHARS client who had been staying at IONA House has now moved in
the Precinct. All three clients have now settled into the
accommodation and are doing really well.
Our plan is to use the YWAM Youth Precinct as transitional
accommodation to move people into the private rental sector by
developing their tenancy skills and obtaining rental references while
staying with YWAM. YHARS Program Workers will continue to work
towards each young persons agreed case plan goals as they stay in
supported accommodation until they are ready to transition into full
independence.
The whole initiative was sparked by QYS YHARS and a need to find
more transitional pathways for vulnerable youth in need of housing.
Thinking outside of the box and looking for other avenues of
accommodation for at-risk young people in Townsville while freeing
up space for crisis accommodation in the city's youth shelters is the
main goal, and YHARS continues to work towards relevant solutions.

Life Skills Queensland, a local business that offers general skills
training in DIY maintenance and home improvement, and YHARS got
together to put on Life Skills Training for clients.
These training workshops are a non-judgmental space for young
people to learn the basics of using hand and power tools, as well as
tips for success and safety while doing DIY projects. This type of
training is crucial in a young persons path towards independence,
especially as they develop their tenancy and living skills.

Magnetic Island
Abseiling
Once again partnering up with Outer
Limits Adventure Fitness, the YHARS
team and a few clients got together
for a thrilling day of abseiling down
the hillsides of Magnetic Island.
The YHARS team and clients
travelled to the island, and together
with Sam and Aline from Outer
Limits, went to their safe and secure
location for abseiling.
Both clients and staff participated in
scaling down the hillside and
thoroughly enjoyed the experience.
Once everyone got their fill of
adrenaline, the group took a trip to
the beach and enjoyed a swim and
lunch which had been prepared by the YHARS team.
For some of the clients, this was their first time going to
Magnetic Island and an opportunity to try something new.
This activity was an excellent way to measure and develop
each young persons resilience and propensity for getting
outside of their comfort zone.
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MT ISA

Mt Isa

50

13

3141

Young People
Received YHARS
Case Management
& Support

Youth Sustained
Independent Living

Case Management
Hours Provided

Back to School Program

159
Students & Families
Received Assistance

QYS successfully received a grant from the
Foundation for Rural and Regional Renewal
(FRRR) to facilitate the Back to School
Program in Mt Isa.
This national program is intended to help
children and young people living in remote
and rural areas gain access to quality
educational experiences. This is achieved
through the provision of $50 vouchers that
are redeemable at retailers such as Target,
Kmart or other local department stores.
QYS was chosen to deliver this special
program to support the communities of Mt
Isa, Cloncurry, Camooweal and Boulia. Word
was spread that QYS Mt Isa was offering this
service by contacting local schools, fellow
service providers and departments such as
Child Safety. Soon, people in need were
referred or reached out to QYS.

The Mt Isa team spoke with the families and
young people in need to find out how
exactly the program could be of assistance.
One $50 voucher was given out per young
person in need. Each voucher was
redeemable online and gave the person the freedom to buy essential school supplies
needed for academic success. The supplies included: shoes, uniforms, clothing
(summer and winter), school bags, lunch bags or stationary items.
Upon the program's close, QYS was able to assist 159 young people and families, with
student ages ranging from 6 to 18. For these people, the chance to be able to
purchase basic school supplies made a world of difference in increasing their
confidence and level of engagement in school. Feedback from one student was that
she felt as if she could be apart of the "smart kids club" because she finally had a
fancy calculator that could calculate world currency on it.
QYS Mt Isa was so happy they got to be apart of a program like this and hopes to
engage in something similar in the future, as the opportunity to put a smile on so
many students and families faces was priceless.

Mt Isa YHARS' has been focused on
providing opportunities for youth
engagement and support within the
community that make a meaningful
difference in the lives of each young
person they encounter.

To increase the impact the QYS Mt
Isa has in the community, team
members attended the following
training sessions:
RAGE Facilitators Training
RAGE (Re-Navigating Anger and Guilty Emotions) is
a strength based, solution focused anger
management program that is hands on, practical
and fun for young people.
It deals with learning how to handle anger in
adolescents and developing healthy coping
mechanisms for when a young person is
experiencing anger.

DRUMBEAT Facilitators Training
DRUMBEAT is a training program for those who
work with people experiencing complex issues that
put them at risk of social isolation and
disengagement.
This evidence-based program combines the power
of group drumming with conversations to explore
what connects us and builds resilience. It's fun,
intensive and practical professional development.

Bravehearts Training Courses
Bravehearts is an organisation that specialises in
personal safety education programs for children and
young people. QYS Mt Isa has participated in several
Bravehearts training courses to increase their
child protection skills and to help youth
develop their own awareness around these
issues, especially concerning family
violence and sexual health.
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Case Study
Ken is an 18 year old single male who was seeking support to get
accommodation, employment, develop living skills and cease his drug
use. Ken experiences anxiety, has no vocational engagement and
stated that he is peer pressured to do drugs. His accommodation is
currently at risk, due to the fact that he was kicked out of home by his
father and has since been couch-surfing. Ken's income is mostly spent
on purchasing food and drugs, with most of his income typically being
spent within 24hrs. He has reported having difficulty with social
interactions as well as having limited family support.
It was identified that Ken's major issues were drug use and
homelessness. To address the homelessness, he was referred to the
Department of Housing to complete a housing application, then he
was referred to Mt Isa Community Development Association (MICDA).
QYS then waited upon MICDA to prepare appropriate
accommodation for Ken. His YHARS Program Worker supported him
in obtaining his 18PLUS card which was used for his housing
application.
While Ken was waiting for his accommodation, he continued to live
with his friends who introduced and influenced him to pursue drugs
and alcohol. Ken couldn't focus on finding employment as he spent
most nights drinking and staying awake. His YHARS Program Worker
intervened using the Big Life Journal, a resource for life planning. Ken
started to show improvement as he attended sessions with Alcohol,
Tobacco and Other Drugs Service (ATODS).
Ken's YHARS Program Worker inquired if he was willing to live with his
parents, as his Program worker was ready to refer him to a local
Reconnect Program, however he declined as he did not want to return
home. Ken has maintained a lot of hatred for his father as he stated he
used to be violently abused by him. While telling his Program Worker
this story, Ken showed obvious signs of anxiety, and YHARS offered to
refer him to Headspace for counselling, however he declined.

YHARS Mt Isa Initiatives
ATODS
Workshop
In collaboration with Save the
Children Australia and Alcohol,
Tobacco and Other Drugs Service
(ATODS), QYS Mt Isa put on a
workshop to build awareness about
drugs and alcohol.
ATODS presented the first session of
their 'Working with Young People:
Alcohol and Other Drugs' course. This
introductory session went over the
patterns of drug use, stages of
change, intervention and how to
support
young
people
with
substance use issues.
The
course
was
extremely
informative for young people and
and program workers. QYS Mt Isa intends to have more of these
sessions so young people have a space to learn about the subject and
build their awareness about drugs and alcohol in their community.

Learner's Program

Ken relapsed by picking up smoking again, at a rate of 30 cigarettes a
day, drinking alcohol and staying up late at night. His Program Worker.
contacted Quit Line on behalf of the client and soon Ken began
counselling. Nicotine Replacement Therapy products were also
introduced to Ken, with Quit Line sending the products to him by
post.
With his history of social disadvantage, poor social support network,
peer pressure perpetuating his drug and alcohol use and having to live
with people who supported those bad habits, it was a difficult
situation for Ken who had poor coping mechanisms and no will
power to say no to his friends. His Program Worker taught him some
strategies on how to say no when asked to engage in risky behaviour,
including educating Ken about life choices, resilience, and good and
bad types of behaviour. Ken also completed his sessions with ATODS.
Ken's Program Worker continued to support him using a strengthbased model during case management. The YHARS Team Leader and
Program Worker were willing to put Ken in his own accommodation
whenever he decided to leave his friends and their influence, however
it became clear that Ken's behaviour wasn't improving. Ken's Program
Worker expressed their concerns to him and he then agreed to leave.
Ken was given temporary accommodation until his own unit was
ready. CentrePay was setup , furniture and household items were
purchased, including clothing and food. The unit was ready with bond
and two weeks rent already paid by QYS. Ken moved in and, as a part
of his case plan, will be attending Tenancy Skills Training, while his
Program Worker continues to support him.
Overall, Ken presented good insight and understanding regarding the
role drugs, alcohol and homelessness play within his daily coping and
functioning. He acknowledged that there was a problem and has
promised to make changes in his life and his choices. His Program
Worker shared with him that non-engagement with the service will
result in closure of his file. In response, Ken has promised to improve
and accepted his case plan goals, with the intention of achieving most
of his plan in six months while living in his Transition to Independent
Living (TIL) unit.

Emotional & Wellbeing
Sessions
QYS Mt Isa has been facilitating fun
activities for clients that incorporate
arts and crafts on a fortnightly basis
to encourage wellbeing in young
people.
These
sessions
create
an
environment where young people
feel empowered to make their own
choices and creations with little
guidance from the YHARS team.
Each activity promotes positive social
skills as well as recognises individual
strengths
crucial
for
personal
development.
QYS sometimes invites external
organisations to assist in delivering
sessions focused on mental, sexual
and general health, wellbeing,
education, parenting skills, as well as
drug and alcohol awareness. Food
and transport are provided for clients
during these sessions too.

In May 2021, QYS Mt Isa began an
initiative to help clients get their
Learner's Licence; a huge step
towards independence.
Each client does an online practice
test, and when they have difficulty, is
assisted by YHARS who helps break
things down for them or present the
information
in
a
more
understandable way. The YHARS
team has created their own
workbook and practice tests, after
going online and taking the test
many times themselves, to give as a
resource to the clients so they can
practice at home. Each client gets
several attempts so they can work at
their own pace and not feel pressured by others. The YHARS team sits
with the clients and helps them answer questions as a group. When
confident, clients will self-test and discuss their results afterwards.
Some clients are registered with the Indigenous Driver's Licence Unit,
which assists people living in remote areas with getting their driver's
licence. So far, one client has successfully passed her Learner's test,
with a second client now ready to take the official test themselves.
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The Young Parents Program
(YPP)
is
a
welcoming
environment
for
young
parents (16-25) and their
children to have fun with
other young parents and
children, learn new skills,
make friends, and access
extra
support
and
assistance.

73

86

Mothers

13

Young Parents
Supported by
the Program

Fathers

98

44

Children
Supported by
the Program

Parent Groups
Hosted

YPP provides Children and
Parenting Support services
(Parent Groups) which focus
on the development and
wellbeing of children, and
improving the capacity of
those in a parenting role.

Parent Groups provide activities, workshops, information
sessions and opportunities to visit specialists from other
organisations and agencies.
Playgroups bring parents, carers and children together
to share and develop parenting skills, build a support
network for families and provide a stimulating
environment for children to develop their social,
emotional and cognitive functioning.
These groups provide support to increase parental
knowledge of child development, assist in developing
parental skills, and normalise the challenges inherent in
parenting.
YPP provides advocacy for young parents in need of
assistance and support due to various circumstances.

31

53

Clients Identified
That They Have
A Disability

Clients Involved
with Child Safety
Services

5

Clients Supported
with Supervised
Access Visits (Child
Safety) at Groups

YPP seeks to help families
create healthy relationships
through focused strategies,
development and education.

43
Playgroups
Hosted

YPP
also
provides
the
Munchkins
Supported
Playgroup
service
which
supports families in giving
children a good start in life
through
early
childhood
development care, education
and school readiness.

Testimonial
"When I first had my baby I had no friends and I started to slip into
depression. I connected with Ruth, the program coordinator, and a
few other ladies from playgroup which made the transition to
motherhood a lot easier. I gained friends, knowledge and mental
strength from Ruth and her playgroup.
To this day I remain friends with Ruth and those ladies from playgroup
and we have been privileged enough to watch each other's babies
grow and lean on each other during hard times."
-YPP Client
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Case Study

YPP Initiatives

Aiden's early childhood development had progressed as expected for
a normal, healthy and happy child. He loved playgroup activities and
had several close friends in the group. He had achieved all of his
learning goals, was well behaved, cooperative and helpful. At around
four-and-a-half years of age, Aiden began showing some behavioural
issues around shopping, with loud and embarrassing tantrums. He
stopped wanting to come to playgroup, complaining it was too noisy,
so Ruth, Young Parents Program Coordinator, supported his mother,
Allison, with case management and home visits focused on trying a
variety of behavioural management strategies.

CPR & First Aid
Training Sessions

In spite of Allison's best efforts, Aiden's behaviour continued to decline
and intensified when he began school with dramatic tantrums and
hiding under the bed to avoid going. He became a fussy eater,
developed sleep issues and was becoming progressively more anxious
and fearful. His teacher expressed concerns that he had difficulty
making friends at school.
On Ruth's suggestion, Allison visited her GP and raised her concerns
around Aiden's behaviour. She was told to do a parenting course then
dismissed. This is a common response to young parents with these
types of concerns, with others being quick to blame the parent for
lack of skills. Aiden's teacher said that she had not noticed any
concerns with his school work, however admitted that it was a large
class and much of her attention was taken by another student who
was loud and disruptive.
Having worked with the family for several years, Ruth knew parenting
skills were not the reason for Aiden's behaviour and suggested that a
more complete and specific list of concerns be formulated. Ruth
conducted a Developmental Milestones Assessment with Allison,
which raised red flags across several domains. Through this discussion,
additional sensory issues, restricted interests, lack of eye contact and
walking on tip toes raised further flags to reveal symptoms which are
common in children on the Autism Spectrum (ASD).

Through the provision of grants from the Port of Townsville Rotary
Club and Northern Suburbs Lions Club, YPP was able to engage a local
accredited training provider, The Job Shop, to conduct CPR and First
Aid training courses. Twenty young parents participated in the
training sessions and gained valuable first aid skills that would lead to
improved confidence in their capabilities. An anonymous $250
donation was also made to the program which allowed for the
purchase of supplies used to make twenty first aid kits.

Billabong Wildlife Sanctuary
Day Trips

An ASD pre-screening tool was used to help Allison further identify
any symptoms and translate any behavioural concerns she had into
language a GP would recognise. The results were compiled as
responses to a PEDS assessment, a report that the GP would take
seriously and would indicate that a referral for special assessment was
warranted.
Allison was now empowered with the language and information she
required to effectively discuss AIden's symptoms with both her GP
and the school, to enable the family to receive the support they
needed.

YPP maintains a membership with Billabong Wildlife Sanctuary and
will often take families there for a fun day out. Families get to enjoy a
day of bonding in a positive, welcoming environment. YPP supports
young families by overcoming challenges such as their financial
hardship, lack of transport and poor support networks which would
otherwise prevent them from doing these types of activities.

Car Give Away

Food & Parcel
Donations
SecondBite is one of Australia's
largest food rescue organisations
that works with food manufacturers
and retailers to distribute surplus
food to local charities and not-forprofits.
Through QYS' partnership with
Secondbite, YPP has been able to
provide food to needy families with
fresh produce and bakery items
collected
from
the
program's
partners.
Support from St. Paul's Lutheran
Church allowed YPP to distribute 45
food parcels. Share the Dignity also
provided 35 hygiene bags for clients.

When a very generous woman contacted the program wanting to
donate a car to a young parent, YPP was only too happy to find them a
recipient.
The donor, who was once a young parent herself, said "We figured
there would likely be a young parent in need. We were blessed by
people when we were younger, so we felt that we could return the
favour and hopefully make one young parent's journey a bit easier."
Jodyn, a single mother who had just begun working
and was struggling to juggle public transport with childcare
drop-offs and variable work shifts, was soon to be in for
a great surprise. On the special day she said "I'm still
speechless but I'm very, very grateful to the donor for helping
me." Jodyn also received a $100 pre-paid fuel card.

1
19
0

QYS HIGHLIGHTS

Learner's Licence
Course April 2021

Evolution Mining Mt Carlton donated $15,00 to kickstart the
renewal of our social enterprise, Chameleon Upcycled
Products, and the revitalisation of our workshop. The project
requires further funding to be completed, but this donation
was a huge help to get things started for QYS.

Our Learner's Licence Course is
specifically built to help young people
learn the road rules and prepare them
for driving. The course includes a
proctored Learner's test and guided
lessons to ensure everyone's success.

Evolution Mining Mt Carlton chose QYS to be the recepient of 30 Field of Dreams tickets,
which allowed clients and staff to attend a home game at the Queensland Country Bank
Stadium. The Field of Dreams initiative is a NQ Cowboys program that gives young people
and other community members a chance to witness their sporting heroes in action when
they otherwise wouldn't have had the opportunity to do so.

Christmas
Luncheon 2020

The Young Women's Workshop was an opportunity for clients
to learn about self-care, personal presentation and healthy
relationships.

The Australian Youth Representative to the United Nations
visited QYS and spoke with young people during a Listening
Tour to discuss their answers to the question "What would
Australia look like if young people were the key drivers of
decision making?"

YHARS Barbwire
Fitness Day Trip
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Article written by Penny Falkenhagen. Source: Primetime.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS
Each stakeholder plays a crucial role in ensuring
the success of QYS and our ability to make a
positive impact on our community.

Funding Bodies

From local businesses, fellow community service
agencies and not-for-profits, our funding bodies
and individuals who have been there for us, your
support is crucial and greatly appreciated.

Our organisation receives funding from the following
departments to deliver specific programs and services:
Department of Social Services
Department of Transport & Main Roads
Department of Children, Youth Justice &
Multicultural Affairs
National Indigenous Australians Agency

Sponsors

Community Collaborators

Our sponsors include local businesses and organisations
who have provided us with in-kind support.

QYS works with many local business and community
service organisations to help our youth on their journey
towards independence and sustainability.
Youth With A Mission (YWAM)
Sharehouse Youth Programs
Townsville Aboriginal and Islander Health Services (TAIHS)
IONA House
Outer Limits Adventure Fitness
The Job Shop
Life Skills Queensland
SecondBite
Workways
Choice, Passion, Life (CPL) Disability Support Services
Mylestones Disability Support Services
Skill360
Pitstop Go-Karting
NQ Kool Cars & Kustoms
Thuringowa, Port of Townsville & Mundingburra Rotary
Townsville Flexible Learning Centre
Headspace
The Oasis Townsville
Local schools
And many other businesses and organisations to help support
our local Townsville.
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OUR PERFORMANCE
Revenue Diversity

Dept.
Social Services
Dept. Social
Services
19%
19%

FY20-21

Dept. Premier & Cabinet
1%

QYS is a non-government, notfor-profit organisation that
receives allocated funding to
facilitate
targeted
youth
support programs for specific
periods of time.

Other Streams
1%
Other Streams
2%
Dept. Transport & Main Roads
6%

Other streams of income
include interest, donations
and grants that give us the
ability to deliver programs
and services that support our
region's vulnerable youth.

Dept. Communities & Child Safety
71%

Operating Efficiencies
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PLANS FOR THE FUTURE
QYS and our dedicated work force will continue to deliver specialised
youth support programs in the hopes of helping vulnerable youth and
achieving our desired future. In this future, we hope to:

Operate out of a QYS owned
building

Grow through partnerships &
innovative practices

Gain a higher profile &
recognition in our communities

Achieve financial
sustainability
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
The following section contains Queensland Youth Services Annual Financial
Report and performance information for the year ended 30 June 2021.
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Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021
2021
Revenue
Other income
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Note
4
4

5
2(b)

Profit for the year

$
2,369,455
47,201
(1,641,651)
(115,448)
(558,630)

2020
$
2,405,848
134,765
(1,646,302)
(94,558)
(649,017)

100,927
-

150,736
-

100,927

150,736

100,927

150,736

Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
1

Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Statement of Financial Position
As At 30 June 2021

Note
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other assets

2021

2020

$

$

772,108
161
34,975

1,130,118
50,000
19,287

807,244

1,199,405

300,000
97,878
374,862

87,882
441,358

772,740

529,240

1,579,984

1,728,645

91,051
89,013
121,538
36,126

81,702
77,561
159,220
194,499

337,728

512,982

298,936
25,414

371,773
26,911

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

324,350

398,684

TOTAL LIABILITIES

662,078

911,666

NET ASSETS

917,906

816,979

EQUITY
Reserves
Retained earnings

101,205
816,701

101,205
715,774

TOTAL EQUITY

917,906

816,979

6
7
8

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other financial assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets

9
10
11

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits
Other financial liabilities

12
11
14
13

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Employee benefits

11
14

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Balance at 1 July 2020

Retained
Earnings

Employee
Benefits
Reserve

Total

$

$

$

Profit/(loss) attributable to members

715,774
100,927

101,205
-

816,979
100,927

Balance at 30 June 2021

816,701

101,205

917,906

Retained
Earnings

$

Employee
Benefit
Reserve

Total

$

$

Balance at 1 July 2019
Change in accounting policy to reflect the retrospective
adjustments - adoption of AASB 15

477,729

101,205

578,934

87,309

-

87,309

Balance at 1 July 2019 restated
Profit/(loss) attributable to members

565,038
150,736

101,205
-

666,243
150,736

Balance at 30 June 2020

715,774

101,205

816,979

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest paid
Interest received

2021

2020

$

$

2,528,315
(2,458,485)
(14,555)
4,528

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities

2,511,930
(2,108,948)
17,423

59,803

420,405

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from the sale of plant and
equipment
Payments for plant and equipment
Purchase of financial investment

7,159
(45,992)
(300,000)

(56,909)
-

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities

(338,833)

(56,909)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Lease payments

(78,980)

(75,334)

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing
activities

(78,980)

(75,334)

(358,010)

288,162

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
financial year

6

1,130,118

841,956

772,108

1,130,118

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

The financial report covers Queensland Youth Services Inc as an individual entity. Queensland Youth Services Inc is a notfor-profit Association, registered and domiciled in Australia.
The functional and presentation currency of Queensland Youth Services Inc is Australian dollars.
Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.
1

Basis of Preparation
In the opinion of those charged with Governance the Association is not a reporting entity since there are unlikely to
exist users of the financial statements who are not able to command the preparation of reports tailored so as to satisfy
specifically all of their information needs. These special purpose financial statements have been prepared to meet the
reporting requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement requirements of
the Australian Accounting Standards and Accounting Interpretations, and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101
Presentation of Financial Statements, AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
and AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures.
2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Association expects to receive
in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows:
1. Identify the contract with the customer
2. Identify the performance obligations
3. Determine the transaction price
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations
5. Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred
Generally the timing of the payment for sale of goods and rendering of services corresponds closely to the
timing of satisfaction of the performance obligations, however where there is a difference, it will result in the
recognition of a receivable, contract asset or contract liability.
None of the revenue streams of the Association have any significant financing terms as there is less than 12
months between receipt of funds and satisfaction of performance obligations.
AASB 1058 – Income of Not-for-Profit Entities
Amounts arising from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 (i.e. contracts which are either not enforceable or do
not have sufficiently specific performance obligations) are recognised at the assets fair value when the asset is
received. The Association considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the
asset which are recognised in accordance with the relevant accounting standard.
Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value
at the time that the asset is received.

5

Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Revenue and other income

Capital grants
Capital grants received to enable the association to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and
equipment to identified specifications which will be under the Association's control and which is enforceable are
recognised as revenue as and when the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.
For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred
since this is deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project as
there is no profit margin.
For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the
Association.
Other income

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it.
(b)

Income Tax

The Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.
(c)

Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).
Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.
Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
classified as operating cash flows.
(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured using the cost model.
Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a reducing balance basis over the
assets useful life to the Association, commencing when the asset is ready for use.
Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the
6

Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(d)

Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation
lease or their estimated useful life.
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Fixed asset class
Plant and Equipment
Motor Vehicles
Leasehold improvements
Right-of-Use - Buildings
Right-of-Use - Motor Vehicles

Depreciation rate
20-50%
25%
25%
13-25%
25%

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.
(e)

Financial instruments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Association becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.
On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).
Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.The Association does not hold any assets measured at
fair value.
Financial liabilities
The Association measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Association comprise trade payables, bank and other loans and lease liabilities.
(f)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(g)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Association assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the contract convey the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
This involves an assessment of whether:


The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be explicitly or implicitly identified within
the agreement. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right then there is no identified asset.



The Association has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the
asset throughout the period of use.



The Association has the right to direct the use of the asset i.e. decision making rights in relation to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

(i)

Right-of-use asset

At the lease commencement, the Association recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease
liability for the lease term. The lease term includes extension periods where the Association believes it
is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.
The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises of
the lease liability, initial direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration
less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight line basis and assessed for
impairment in accordance with the impairment of assets accounting policy.
(ii)

Lease liability

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the
commencement of the lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this
cannot be readily determined then the Association's incremental borrowing rate is used.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method. The lease liability is remeasured whether there is a lease modification, change in
estimate of the lease term or index upon which the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI) or a change in
the Association's assessment of lease term.
Exceptions to lease accounting
The Association has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases
with a term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. The Association recognises the
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(h)

Employee benefits

Provision is made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled.
Employee benefits expected to be settled more than one year after the end of the reporting period have been
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. In
determining the liability, consideration is given to employee wage increases and the probability that the
employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Cashflows are discounted using market yields on high quality
corporate bond rates incorporating bonds rated AAA or AA by credit agencies, with terms to maturity that match
the expected timing of cashflows. Changes in the measurement of the liability are recognised in profit or loss.
3

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Those charged with governance make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements
regarding assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates.
4

Revenue and Other Income

Commonwealth Government Grants
Department Of Social Services
Other Grants

State and Local Government Grants
QLD Department of Communities, Child
Safety & Disability Services
Department of Transport and Main Roads
Other Grants

Other income
Interest Received
ATO Cashflow Boost
Other Income

Total Revenue and Other Income

2021

2020

$

$

464,812
17,064

461,446
20,168

481,876

481,614

1,718,983
151,818
16,778

1,743,487
150,000
30,746

1,887,579

1,924,234

4,528
42,673

17,423
100,000
17,342

47,201

134,765

2,416,656

2,540,613
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Queensland Youth Services Inc
ABN: 33 186 707 759

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

5

Other Expenses

2021

6

2020

Administration Expenses
Audit, Legal and Consulting Expenses
Motor Vehicle Expenses
Program and Client Expenses
Property and Rental Costs
Training Expenses

$
135,850
16,620
44,970
309,084
39,914
12,192

$
198,045
21,401
63,530
273,932
77,963
14,146

Total Other Expenses

558,630

649,017

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2021

7

2020

CBA Cheque Account
CUA Cash Deposit Account
GSB ESaver Boost Account
GSB Everyday Business Account
Petty Cash

$
32,729
734,038
2,741
2,600

$
204,957
517,438
400,825
3,999
2,900

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

772,108

1,130,118

Trade and other receivables

2021

2020

$

$

CURRENT
Trade Receivables
Accrued Income

161
-

50,000

Total Trade and Other Receivables

161

50,000

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term
nature of the balances.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable in the financial
statements.
8

Other Assets

2021

2020

$

$

CURRENT
Prepayments
Security Deposits

15,689
19,287

19,287

Total Other Assets

34,975

19,287
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ABN: 33 186 707 759

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

9

Other Financial Assets

2021

2020

$

$

NON-CURRENT
Investors Central Limited

300,000

-

Total Other Financial Assets

300,000

-

The Association has purchased 300,000 Redeemable Preference Shares in Investors Central Limited for a Term of 24
months maturing 01 July 2023.
10

Property, plant and equipment

2021

2020

$

$

Plant and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

62,154
(35,853)

48,353
(24,166)

Total plant and equipment

26,301

24,187

Motor vehicles
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

159,367
(102,569)

162,463
(119,537)

56,798

42,926

26,086
(11,307)

25,586
(4,817)

Total leasehold improvements

14,779

20,769

Total Property, Plant and
Equipment

97,878

87,882

Total motor vehicles
Leasehold Improvements
At cost
Accumulated amortisation

11
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

10

Property, plant and equipment
(a)

Movements in carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and
the end of the current financial year:
Plant and
Motor
Leasehold
Equipment
Vehicles
Improvement
Total
Year ended 30 June 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense
Balance at the end of the year

$

$

$

$

24,187
13,801
(11,687)

42,926
31,691
(4,640)
(13,178)

20,769
500
(6,491)

87,882
45,992
(4,640)
(31,356)

26,301

56,798

14,779

97,878

Plant and
Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Leasehold
Improvement

Total

$

$

$

$

Year ended 30 June 2020
Balance at the beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Depreciation expense

3,293
28,324
(346)
(7,084)

52,515
3,000
(12,591)

25,585
(4,816)

55,808
56,909
(346)
(24,491)

Balance at the end of the year

24,187

42,926

20,769

87,882
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

11

Leases
Right-of-use assets

Buildings

Motor
Vehicles

Total

$

$

$

Year ended 30 June 2021
Balance at beginning of year
Additions at cost
Depreciation charge

403,945
(70,492)

37,413
17,596
(13,600)

441,358
17,596
(84,092)

Balance at end of year

333,453

41,409

374,862

Buildings

Motor
Vehicles

Total

$

$

$

Year ended 30 June 2020
Additions at cost
Depreciation charge

462,889
(58,944)

48,536
(11,123)

511,425
(70,067)

Balance at end of year

403,945

37,413

441,358

Lease liabilities

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:
Lease liabilities
Total
included in this
undiscounted
Statement Of
1 - 5 years
> 5 years
lease liabilities Financial Position
< 1 year
2021
Lease liabilities

$

$

101,449

261,012

$
61,600

$
424,061

$
387,949
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

12

Trade and Other Payables

CURRENT
Accrued expenses
CBA Credit Card
GST payable
Portable long service leave levy
Trade payables

2021

2020

$

$

8,247
(2,550)
65,208
5,163
14,984

10,000
(4,481)
71,113
5,070

91,051

81,702

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days. The carrying
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature
of the balances.
13

14

Other Financial Liabilities

2020

$

$

CURRENT
Contract liabilities
Provision for underspent grants

36,126
-

2,000
192,499

Total Other Financial Liabilities

36,126

194,499

Employee Benefits

Current liabilities
Annual leave
Long service leave

2021

2020

$

$

91,315
30,222

106,236
52,984

121,538

159,220

Non-current liabilities
Long service leave

25,414

26,911

Total Non-Curren Employee Benefits

25,414

26,911

Total Current Employee Benefits

15

2021

Contingencies

In the opinion of those charged with governance, the Association did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2021 (30
June 2020:None).
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

16

Events after the end of the Reporting Period

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the
Association in future financial years.
17

Statutory Information
The registered office and principal place of business of the
association is:
Queensland Youth Services Inc
16 Somer Street
Hermit Park QLD 4812

15

TOWNSVILLE
1/211 Sturt Street Townsville QLD 4810
PO Box 1269 Townsville QLD 4810
T: +61 7 4755 3330
CAIRNS
8-9/320 Sheridan Street Cairns QLD 4870
PO Box 7817 Cairns QLD 4870
T: +61 7 40377 050

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

www.jessupsnq.com.au
info@jessupsnq.com.au

TO THE MEMBERS OF QUEENSLAND YOUTH SERVICES INC
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion
We have audited the financial report of Queensland Youth Services Inc (the registered entity), which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the responsible persons’
declaration.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of Queensland Youth Services Inc is in accordance with Division
60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (ACNC Act), including:


giving a true and fair view of the registered entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2021 and of its financial
performance for the year then ended; and



complying with Australian Accounting Standards, and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-forprofits Commission Regulation 2013.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our
report. We are independent of the registered entity in accordance with the ACNC Act and the ethical requirements
of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting
We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial report
has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the registered entity’s financial reporting responsibilities under the
ACNC Act. As a result, the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Limited liability by a scheme approved under professional standards legislation.
Trademark of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand and used with permission
A.B.N.: 99 194 967 950

Responsibilities of the Committee for the Financial Report
The committee members of the registered entity are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives
a true and fair view and have determined that the basis of preparation in Note 1 to the financial report is appropriate
to meet the requirements of the ACNC Act and is appropriate to meet the needs of the members. The committees’
responsibility also includes such internal control as the committee members determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of a financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial report, the committee members are responsible for assessing the registered entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the committee members either intend to liquidate the registered entity or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing and
Assurance Standards website at: http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. This description forms
part of our auditor’s report.

Jessups

Paul Sapelli
Partner
Level 1, 211 Sturt Street, Townsville, QLD 4810
Dated: 18 August 2021

TOWNSVILLE
1/211 Sturt Street Townsville QLD 4810
PO Box 1269 Townsville QLD 4810
T: +61 7 4755 3330
CAIRNS
8-9/320 Sheridan Street Cairns QLD 4870
PO Box 7817 Cairns QLD 4870
T: +61 7 4037 7050

18 August 2021

www.jessupsnq.com.au
info@jessupsnq.com.au

The Management Committee
Queensland Youth Service Inc
PO Box 573
Townsville QLD 4810
Dear Management Committee Members,

30 JUNE 2021 AUDIT
We have completed our audit of the financial report for Queensland Youth Services Inc. for the year ended
30 June 2021 and have issued an unqualified audit report. We noted a number of matters which we consider
should be brought to your attention. These matters together with our recommendations are included in
Appendix A.
We would like to draw to your attention to the fact that the audit procedures that have been carried out are
primarily to assist us in coming to an audit opinion on the entity’s financial report for the year ended 30 June
2021 and were not carried out with a view to arriving at any conclusion of the adequacy or otherwise of the
entity’s systems and procedures that may exist.
This report includes only those matters that have to come to our attention as a result of the performance of
our audit. An audit of financial statements is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to those
charged with governance. This letter has been prepared solely for the use of management in discharging its
responsibilities with respect to the financial statements and is not intended for any other purpose. This letter
should not be distributed to others outside the entity without prior written consent. We disclaim any liability to
any third party who may reply upon this letter.
We take this opportunity to thank your team for their assistance during the audit. Please do not hesitate to
contact Jess Walton or myself if you have any queries with regard to the above.
Yours faithfully
Jessups

Paul Sapelli
Partner

Limited liability by a scheme approved under professional standards legislation.
Trademark of Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand and used with permission
A.B.N.: 99 194 967 950

APPENDIX A
1.

Opening balances

Matter
We note that the opening balances of your accounts did not correlate to the audited financial statements for
the previous period. We have posted adjusting entries in order to rectify this.
Recommendation
We recommend that you record the adjusting entries provided to you with this management letter into MYOB
and that you lock the file to prevent changes being made to this period to prevent this from occurring in the
future.
2.

Journal entries to retained earnings

Matter
We note that during the period you are posting adjusting entries directly through to retained earnings, primarily
for the purpose of funding acquittals.
Recommendation
It is important to note that, your accounts are required to meet the Australian Accounting Standards, and that
any journals to retained earnings made during the period should be reversed come year end. Any adjustments
for contract liabilities and provisions for possible repayments of funding monies, should be presented through
the balance sheet and profit and loss.
3.

Creditors

Matter
The balance of your accounts payable listing in MYOB does not reconcile to the general ledger balance.
Recommendation
We recommend that this variance be resolved as soon as possible.
4.

Long service leave

Matter
We note that you are including laundry and first aid allowances in the calculation of ordinary wages from
which the QLeave levy is calculated.
We also note that you are currently accounting for movements in long service leave accruals via an excel
spreadsheet as opposed to using the MYOB payroll function.
Recommendation
Certain allowances are excluded from ordinary wages and we recommend that you seek guidance as to the
correct treatment of your allowances. The use of excel spreadsheets is prone to human error and
manipulation and we recommend that all leave accruals are maintained in MYOB.
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QUEENSLAND YOUTH SERVICES INCORPORATED
ABN: 33 186 707 759
SUMMARY OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
QYS NON-FUNDED ACTIVITIES
INCOME
Management Fees
Grants
Fees for Services Provided
Reimbursements
Rent
Donations
Interest Received
Motor Vehicle Lease
Miscellaneous Income
Parental Leave Funds from ATO
Profit on Sale of Assets
Registration Youth Forum
Other Income - Cashflow Boost
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Wages & Salaries
Superannuation
Wages on-costs
Staff Procurement
WorkCover
Staff Amenities
Other Staff Costs
Staff Training & Dev't
Paid Parental Leave
Total Payroll Costs
Vehicles ,Maintenance & Fuel
Vehicle Insurance
Total Vehicle Costs
Advertising & Publicity
Brokerage Support Service
Insurance: P/L
Client Programs
Legal & Associated Expenses
First Aid Supplies
Bank Charges
Interest Expense R.O.U. Lease
Catering
Insurance: General
IT/Computers
Membership Fees

ACTUAL
2020/21
276,430
400
439
482
280
4,528
62,580
9,829
9,047
2,520

366,535

303,147
28,744
(29,887)
500
2,245
1,067
2,973
4,102
7,539
320,430
13,053
(68)
12,985
830
75
539
73
635
1,657
333
43
3,068
848

ACTUAL
2019/20
273,500
30,746
14,354
136
8,931
17,423
68,250
(8,718)
(346)
(227)
100,000
504,049

262,613
32,613
19,605
713
2,840
1,099
644
2,475
322,602
1,262
325
1,588
2,002
1,010
1,043
2,218
450
68
372
1,370
267
649
577
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Meetings & AGM
Management Committee costs
Office Equip - M'tce & Repair
Office,Copier & Fax Supplies
Printing Postage & Stationary
Identification Project
Rent/Outgoings
Uniforms
Electricity
Office and Property Cleaning
Archiving
Subscriptions
Relocation Expenses
Fire Safety & Security
Costs charged-on
Telephone & Internet
Accounting Fees
Audit Fees
Establishment Costs
Computer Equipment
Total Other Costs
Depreciation
Depreciation Expense R.O.U.A
Total Depreciation
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

1,012
1,329
1,441
1,089
140
1,325
1,049
2,741
913
1,873
621
473
5,171
3,545
4,886
35,708
31,355
8,661
40,016
409,140

5,798
83,100
24,491
5,197
29,688
436,977

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

(42,605)

67,072

The Summary of Income and expediture is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.
Note: Actual 2019/20 result updated from prior years Annual Report with Audit adjustments

2,657
7,119
1,452
1,171
434
3,914
3,047
3,995
2,009
2,412
18,087

7,794
6,433
6,752
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QUEENSLAND YOUTH SERVICES INCORPORATED
ABN: 33 186 707 759
GRANT ACQUITTAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
FAMILY SUPPORT PROGRAM
INCOME
Dept of Social Services
Donations
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Wages & Salaries
Superannuation
Wages On-Costs
WorkCover
Staff Amenities
Other Staff Costs
Staff Training & Development
Total Payroll Costs
Advertising & Publicity
Insurance: P/L
Client Programs
Training & Venue Hire
First Aid Supplies
Vehicle Lease
Vehicle Maintenance & Fuel
Vehicle Insurance
Interest Expense R.O.U. Lease
Insurance: General
IT/Computers
Management Costs
Office Equip - M'tce & Repair
Office,Copier & Fax Supplies
Printing Postage & Stationary
Electricity
Office and Property Cleaning
Subscriptions
Fire Safety & Security
Telephone & Internet
Depreciation Expense R.O.U.A
Total Other Costs
Total Expense
Net Surplus/(Defecit)

ACTUAL
2020/21
144,406
2,280
146,686

BUDGET
2020/21
142,272

97,962
9,087
(4,247)
1,048
92
91
542
104,576
408
50
4,263
91
37
12,000
940
734
1,105
28
1,394
10,000
698
785
14
1,251
1,488
551
109
1,690
4,619
42,253
146,829

96,946
9,932
1,000
1,048
200
700
109,825
400
690
4,000
800
12,000
3,200
880
376
1,080
10,000
500
200
1,200
1,100
1,740
352
2,300
5,359
46,177
156,002

(143)

(13,731)

The Grant Acquittal Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.

142,272
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QUEENSLAND YOUTH SERVICES INCORPORATED
ABN: 33 186 707 759
GRANT ACQUITTAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
PLAYGROUP-MUNCHKINS
(Program is on a Calander Year)
INCOME
Dept Prime Minister & Cabinet
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Wages & Salaries
Superannuation
Total Payroll Costs
Client Programs
Venue Hire
Vehicles ,Maintenance & Fuel
Total Other Costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

ACTUAL
2020/21
17,064
17,064

BUDGET
Annual
17,064
17,064

11,500
1,092
12,592
1,598
1,050
1,365
4,013
16,606

11,500
1,093
12,593
1,972
1,000
1,500
4,472
17,064

458

-

The Grant Acquittal Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.
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QUEENSLAND YOUTH SERVICES INCORPORATED
ABN: 33 186 707 759
GRANT ACQUITTAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
Mount Isa YHARS
INCOME
Prior Year Grant B/Forward
Dept of Child Safety, Youth & Women
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Wages & Salaries
Superannuation
Wages On-Costs
Staff Procurement
WorkCover
Staff Amenities
Other Staff Costs
Staff Training & Dev't
Total Payroll Costs
Brokerage Support Service
Total Brokerage
Advertising & Publicity
Insurance: P/L
Client Programs
Housing management fees MICDA
Vehicle Lease
Vehicles ,Maintenance & Fuel
Vehicle Insurance
Interest Expense R.O.U. Lease
Catering
Insurance: General
IT/Computers
Management Costs
Office Equip - M'tce & Repair
Office,Copier & Fax Supplies
Printing, Postage & Stationery
Uniforms
Rent/Outgoings
Electricity
Office and Property Cleaning
Fire Safety & Security
Telephone & Internet
Travel
HSQF Audit
Depreciation Expense R.O.U.A
Total Other Costs

ACTUAL
2020/21
19,318
454,203
473,521

222,195
21,100
10,236
14
2,245
1,851
997
1,404
260,043
60,963
60,963
545
124
3,023
4,380
3,336
978
3,311
269
71
2,333
48,000
1,305
2,742
788
196
5,934
4,667
10,456
2,195
1,773
7,686
222
36,434
140,766

BUDGET
2020/21
480,638
480,638

232,278
20,394
2,245
600
4,000
259,517
93,646
93,646
500
1,030
1,000
4,880
12,983
4,500
1,756
889
1,080
48,000
2,144
500
400
3,200
8,740
708
1,500
3,651
30,014
127,475

6

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

461,772

480,638

11,749

-

The Grant Acquittal Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.

7

QUEENSLAND YOUTH SERVICES INCORPORATED
ABN: 33 186 707 759
GRANT ACQUITTAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
Reconnect
INCOME
Dept of Social Services
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Wages & Salaries
Superannuation
Wages On-Costs
Staff Procurement
WorkCover
Staff Amenities
Other Staff Costs
Staff Training & Development
Total Payroll Costs
Brokerage
Advertising & Publicity
Insurance: P/L
Client Programs
First Aid Supplies
Vehicle Lease
Vehicles ,Maintenance & Fuel
Vehicle Insurance
Interest Expense R.O.U. Lease
Catering
Insurance: General
IT/Computers
Management Costs
Office Equip: Maint & Repairs
Office,Copier & Fax Supplies
Printing, Postage & Stationery
Uniforms
Electricity
Office and Property Cleaning
Archiving
Subscriptions
Fire Safety & Security
Telephone & Internet
Travel
Depreciation Expense R.O.U.A
Total Other Costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURE

ACTUAL
2020/21
320,406
320,406

BUDGET
2020/21
319,174
319,174

215,343
20,208
803
295
2,245
54
118
2,899
241,965
1,294
409
75
2,511
73
11,580
1,530
489
1,657
43
1,899
41,500
100
805
104
184
1,403
1,256
523
826
109
2,874
615
6,929
78,788
320,752

216,785
19,736
1,000
400
2,245
150
3,000
243,317
2,600
1,030
3,500
11,600
4,200
880
150
565
1,080
41,500
800
550
100
500
1,400
1,100
2,490
652
3,500
8,039
86,236
329,552

8

NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

(346)

The Grant Acquittal Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.

(10,378)
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QUEENSLAND YOUTH SERVICES INCORPORATED
ABN: 33 186 707 759
GRANT ACQUITTAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
Townsville YHARS
INCOME
Prior Year Grant B/Forward
Dept of Child Safety, Youth & Women
Miscelaneous Income
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Wages & Salaries
Superannuation
Wages On-Costs
Staff Procurement
Workcover
Staff Amenities
Other Staff Costs
Staff Training & Development
Total Payroll Costs
Brokerage-After Care
Brokerage-Support Services
Total Brokerage
Advertising & Publicity
Insurance: P/L
Client Programs
First Aid Supplies
Professional Supervision
Vehicle Lease Costs
Vehicle Maintenance & Fuel
Vehicle Insurance
Interest Expense R.O.U. Lease
Catering
Insurance: General
IT/Computers
Management Costs
Membership Fees
Office Equip: Maint & Repairs
Office, Copier & Fax Supplies
Printing Postage & Stationary
Uniforms
Electricity
Office & Property Cleaning
Archiving
Subscriptions
Fire Safety & Security

ACTUAL
2020/21
192,499
1,188,732
18
1,381,249

549,912
51,882
6,938
334
5,688
427
440
3,245
618,866
92,419
108,126
200,545
727
174
6,304
183
44,058
15,561
2,690
6,826
107
100
5,101
154,430
3,110
2,078
265
265
5,263
4,407
1,384
16
243

BUDGET
2020/21
1,381,776
1,381,776

569,232
51,173
1,000
500
5,706
800
6,000
634,411
159,734
212,011
371,745
1,000
2,405
11,000
100
1,000
62,116
19,000
6,139
500
1,694
2,520
154,430
550
5,210
1,600
2,000
500
5,000
3,739
1,100
1,530
402
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Telephone & Internet
Travel
Accounting Fees
Audit Fees
HSQF Audit
Depreciation Expense R.O.U.A
Total Other Costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

7,723
839
1,935
2,443
2,148
27,450
295,830
1,115,241

12,000
1,500
1,500
2,500
2,500
32,155
335,690
1,341,846

266,008

39,930

The Grant Acquittal Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.
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QUEENSLAND YOUTH SERVICES INCORPORATED
ABN: 33 186 707 759
GRANT ACQUITTAL STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
YOUTH LEARN-IT
(Program is on a Calander Year)
INCOME
Prior Year Grant B/Forward
Dept Transport & Main Roads
Fees for Services
Donations
TOTAL INCOME
EXPENDITURE
Wages & Salaries
Superannuation
Wages On-Costs
Workcover
Total Payroll Costs
Advertising & Publicity
Client Programs/Lessons & Tests
Vehicle Fuel (Youth LearnIt)
Vehicles ,Maintenance & Cleaning
Mentor Induction / ID Cards
Management Costs
Booking.Times
Subscriptions/ID Cards
Telephone & Internet
Total Other Costs
TOTAL EXPENDITURE
NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

ACTUAL
2020/21
52,116
151,818
3,600
11,760
219,296

113,512
11,342
(6,580)
1,497
119,771
1,091
667
12,837
(2,996)

BUDGET
Annual
150,000

150,000

(71)
35,453
155,224

102,080
8,301
1,000
1,497
112,878
1,700
10,545
148
22,500
1,307
322
600
37,122
150,000

64,071

-

22,500
1,424

The Grant Acquittal Statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements.
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OTHER GRANTS
ID project - Cathederal School
Income
FY2020 Miscellaneous Income
Total Income

ongoing Totals
2,412
2,412

Expense
FY2020 Client Programs
FY2021 Client Programs
Total Expense

134
1,020
1,154

Net Surplus/(Defecit)

1,258

--> To date 18 clients have benefitted from receiving Identifications

VolunteersGrant
Income
FY2020 DSS Volunteers Grant
Total Income
Expense
FY2021 Vehicles ,Maintenance & Fuel
FY2020 IT/Computers
Total Expense
Net Surplus/(Defecit)
Youthweek 2020
Income
FY2020 Youthweek 2020
Total Income
Expense
FY2021 Wages & Salaries
FY2021 Advertising & Publicity
FY2021 Training & Venue Hire
FY2021 Catering
FY2021 Office,Copier & Fax Supplies
Total Expense
Net Surplus/(Defecit)

ongoing Totals
5,000
5,000
2,300
2,054
4,354
646
ongoing Totals
2,000
2,000
300
25
300
233
89
947
1,053

--> Event held on 14th April 2021

Evolution Mining Grant
Income
Donation
Total Income
Expense
Operational Set Up Costs
Total Expense
Net Surplus/(Defecit)

ongoing Totals
15,000
15,000
15,000
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GCBF - Computers & Software
Income
FY2021 Gambling Community Benefir Fund
Total Income
Expense
FY2021 Computer Equipment
Total Expense
Net Surplus/(Defecit)

ongoing Totals
18,904
18,904
16,778
16,778
2,126

--> for staff PC replacements

Stronger Communities
Income
FY2021 Dept Industry, Science, Energy & Resources
Total Income
Expense
FY2021 Operational Set Up Costs
Total Expense
Net Surplus/(Defecit)
FRRR: Back to School Program
Income
FY2021 Gambling Community Benefir Fund
Total Income
Expense
FY2021 Vouchers distributed
Total Expense
Net Surplus/(Defecit)
--> 159 vouchers distributed

ongoing Totals
19,000
19,000
6,555
6,555
12,445
ongoing Totals
8,000
8,000
8,000
8,000
-

F.A.Q.
What does QYS do?

Our organisation provides youth support programs and services that assist young
people in achieving independence and stability. Our dedicated team strives to
support youth in maintaining healthy relationships, finding stable
accommodation and improving their overall wellbeing. Age and other eligibility
requirements apply per program.

Is QYS a government organisation?
We are a non-government, not-for-profit organisation. QYS receives funding to
facilitate youth support programs from government departments, however we
remain a non-government incorporation. We otherwise rely on grants, donations
and alternate streams of income.

What are the types of services QYS provides?
QYS provides a multitude of services which include, but are not limited to,
housing assistance, supervised driving lessons, mediation and counselling,
playgroups and parent groups, assistance with services such as CentreLink, mental
health referrals, employment, education and training referrals and connecting
young people and families with other relevant support services.

Does QYS provide emergency accommodation?
QYS does not have any emergency accommodation available, however our Youth
Housing and Reintegration Service (YHARS) program can assist eligible young
people who are registered with the service to find suitable accommodation.

How can someone support, sponsor or partner with QYS?
QYS welcomes monetary and material donations, in-kind support and
partnerships that will enhance our ability to deliver youth support programs in our
community. We are always open to speaking with community members and local
businesses about how they would like to work with us to collaborate or provide
support in whatever ways they have available.

Visit our website
for more
information.
1
63
0

16 Somer Street, Hyde Park QLD 4812
(07) 4771 3648
ceo@qys.org.au
qys.org.au

